
HA-139 
HOMELANDS 
HERBERT-HARLAN HOUSE 
Priest Ford Road 
Churchville, Maryland 21028 

SUMMARY 

"Homelands", part of which is said to date from 1806 when it was built by John Herbert, 
is; by all accounts, the manor house of Churchville. Its location on the brow of a hill 
overlooking the village hints at its prominence in the area. Indeed, this fann can be 
called the progenitor of most of Churchville, for out of it were carved most of the town's 
building lots, a process that began in the early 19th Century and still continues. 

The fann was purchased by John Herbert in 1806 and is still owned by his descendents. 
The house itself evolved with each generation, beginning with the westerly three bays of 
the main (south) section in the early 19th Century. Dr. David Harlan added the easterly 
two bays and Hidow's walk in the third quarter of the 19th Century and his son, William 
Beatty Harlan,added the porch and leaded glass windows in the first quarter of the 20th 
Century. 

The house then, still on the original farrn, has become quite an important landmark in 
Churchville. Its own evolution with each generation of the Herbert-Harlan family bears 
witness to the waves of the development of the town, each one supe''Eedfog tee earlier ones 
so that most of what exists now in Churchville dates from the early 20th Century when 
Margaret Harlan's heirs sold off a number of lots along the main roads. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

This two-story gable-roofed frame clapboard house is located on the east side of 
Priest Ford Road (Md. Rte. 136), just north of Churchville. 

Set on a low stone foundation, the house is T-shaped with two shed-roofed additions 
on the north end: The main or south section measuring 47 1 411 x28 1 411 is five bays wide 
and two rooms deep (the two easterly bays were added in the third quarter of the 19th 
Century; with a four-flue stuccoed chimney in the west end and a one-flue stove chimney 
in the east. The 2-1/2 story shed-roofed tee measures 24 1 311 x20 1 811 and is three bays long 
and one room wide with an interior three-flue stuccoed chimney near the north end. The 
windows in the second story center bay of the south facade has leaded glass. Most 
windows have 6/6 sash and louvered shutters. Except for the north wing, the clapboards 
are beaded and on the west measure 4-1/2-6 11 and on the east regularly 6-1/2 11

• The 
roof has a boxed cornice and widow's walk (sans balusters) added in the late 19th 
Century. Dating from the early 20th Century, the three bay wide front (south) porch has 
fluted doric columns and an architrave ornamented with triglyptts. The entrance in the 
center bay has sidelights and a transom. 

The interior of the south section has a center hall plan with two rooms on the 
west (originally with doors between them) and a double parlor on the east, separated from 
the hall by a pair of fluted columns. The trim in the west section is plain with recessed 
circles in the corner blocks; the trim in the east parlors is distinguished by two 
vertical flutes. The mantels in the two west rooms are similar with LI-shaped shelves 
molded cornices and end blocks with recessed panels supported on free-standing columns. 
The staircase has scroll brackets and square balusters. 

The tee contains a hall with enclosed back stair on the the south and kitchen on 
the north. 51-r<AlltW"e-; ~a.st ~ ~ k.w-e... 

5~ 
The outbuildings include a two-story stone smokehouse east of the house, andAframe~ 

$rom west to east, they comprise: _ · , a one-story, 
B,C ~able-roofed shed covered with asbestos siding; a two-story corn crib on stone posts 
D,E with a hewn frame; a one-story stable, a board-&-batten barn with a long roof pitch on 
F the west and shed addition on the east, and a board-&-batten shed open to the south. 
G South of the house are the farm buildings. The modern barn includes the old wagon and 

corn shed that survived the fire thattelled the old barn. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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"Homelands", part of which is said to date from 1806 when it was built by John 
Herbert, is; by all accounts, the manor house of Churchville. Its location on the 
brow of a hill overlooking the village hints at its prominence in the area. Indeed, 
this fann can be called the progenitor of most of Churchville, for out of it were 
carved most of the town's building lots, a process that began in the early 19th 
Century and still continues. 

In 1806, John Herbert began purchasing land in this area known at that ti~e as 
''Lower Crossroads"; during his time as "Herbert's Crossroads". He may have built part 
of the present house soon after, but the dimensions of the western three bays that are 
said to have been his do not correspond to any of the buildings attributed to John 
Herbert on the 1814 Tax List. (The 1806 cornerstone was carved in the 20th Century, 
during the residency of Paul Harlan). The 1814 Tax List does show that, as we would 
expect John Herbert was a prosperous landowner. Valued at $7594, his holdings included 
280 Ac;es, 8 slaves, a "Wood house (24 1 xl6 1

), log kitchen (18'xl6'), wood ba~n (18 
square feet), good for nothing, one house (32'x22') wood, two old frame dwe~l1~g houses 
(40'x32') very sorry, mill house (wood), log barn (14'x27'), corn house (14 x9 ), log 
house (20'x22'), wood stable (16'xl4'), stone springhouse (7'xl0'), wood kitchen 
(14 1 xl2 1

). 

The fann then passed to John Herbert's son, James, who was a merchant with a store 
stocked with all sorts of exotic inventory: hundreds of yards of cloth ("twiled, striped 
and orange born basett 11

, gingham, flannel, 11 casamere 11
, muslin, 11 jackonett11

, calico, 
cambrick), shawls, handkerchiefs, 11 crevats 11

, suspenders, pantaletts, plain ribbons and 
"watch ribins", lace, gallons of French brandy, Lisbon wine, as well as gin and whiskey, 
"pairs of Morocco shoes", barrels of vinegar and molasses and quires of pepper, one 
hair sifter (?), 6 dozen jews harps, wagons and wagon parts, 11 rasors 11

, all sorts of 
combs - redding - side, long, hair and 11 pocket11

, toothbrushes, slate pencils, 11 escences 
and phials", inkstands, ink powder, camomile, allspite, allum, ginger, 11 jig blue", 
"bohea tea 11

, "cannamon", smoking tobacco, cigars, snuff boxes, castor oil, dozens of 
pitchers - white, luster, queensware, cream, "liver pool" cups, saucers and teapots, 
soup plates, breakfast plates, blue edged plates, "scales & waits" - the list goes on 
f?r 14 pages; B. Herbert, .and then James Herbert's daughter, Margaret Herbert, inherited 
his property in 1831. In 1846 she married Dr. David Harlan, Medical Director of the 
U.S. Navy1and the 1858 and 1878 Martenet's Map show Homelands as his residence. The 
easterly nalf of the house, at least, was constructed at this time. Born in 1809 near 
Stafford, David Harlan was the son of Jeremiah Harlan. Educated at Rock Run Academy and 
Washington Medical School of Baltimore, David Harlan's service with the Navy in both 
the Mexican and the Civil Wars gave him national prominence. David Harlan died in 1891, 
.largaret Harlan in \107 and the fann was split among their five children: Oleita, 
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY {See Attached Sheet) 
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Significance (Cont.) 

HOMELANDS 
HA-139 

Herbert, Wm. Beatty, David E.,and Henry. William Beatty Harlan inherited the house and in 
1929 left it to his son, Paul Beatty Harlan, the current owner. 

William Beatty Harlan added the porch and the colored glass windows. An earlier 
photograph(clearly 20th century) shows the house with its widow's walk with gingerbread 
balusters, regular window in the second floor center bay, front entrance, minus sidelights, 
hip-roofed three bay wide front porch with a tapered doric square posts, and a noticeable 
seam in the second story east of the center bay. 

The house then, still on the original farm, has become quite an important landmark in 
Churc~ville. Its own evolution with each generation of the Herbert-Harlan family bears 
witness to the waves of the development of the town, each onesuperseding the earlier ones 
so that most of what exists now in Churchville dates from the early 20th Century when Margaret 
Harlan's heirs sold off a number of lots along the main roads. 
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